# COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

Between

## MONROE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION

\*\*\*

and the

## MONROE TOWNSHIP EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

\*\*\*

2005-2006 2006-2009

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Page
Article I	Recognition	2
Article II	Nondiscrimination Clause	2
Article III	Grievance Procedure	2
Article IV	Association Rights	4
Article V	Working Conditions	5
Article VI	Teacher Facilities and Rights	9
Article VII	Leaves of Absence	10
Article VIII	Summer School, Home Instruction, Title Programs	13
Article IX	Promotions, Transfers and Vacancies	14
Article X	Curriculum	15
Article XI	Benefits and Medical Coverage	15
Article XII	Salaries	16
Article XIII	General	16
Article XIV	Negotiations and Successor Agreement	17
Article XV	Guarantee Clause	17
Article XVI	Conformity to Law	17
Article XVII	Duration	17

# ARTICLE I RECOGNITION

The Monroe Township Board of Education, hereafter called the Board, recognizes the Monroe Township Education Association, NJEA, hereafter called the Association as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for professional staff except the superintendent and assistant superintendents, principals, and assistant principals and any supervisor having the power to hire, discharge, discipline, evaluate or to effectively recommend the same, and substitutes, pursuant to NJSA, Title 34, Chapter 123, PL1974.

# ARTICLE II NONDISCRIMINATION CLAUSE

- 2:1 The parties agree to follow a policy of nondiscrimination against any employee on the basis of race, color, creed, age, national origin, sex, marital status or membership, participation in or lack of participation in, association with or lack of association with the activities of any employee organization.
- 2:2 Employees shall be entitled to full rights of citizenship as granted under Federal and State Laws. No religious or political activities of any employee or the lack thereof shall be grounds for any disciplinary action or discrimination with respect to the employment of such employees.
- 2:3 The private or personal fife of any employee is not within the appropriate concern or attention of the Board except when there is violation of law or an action that is definitively detrimental to the operation of the school system.

# ARTICLE III GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

#### 3:1 **Definitions**

- 3:1.1 A grievance is a complaint that there has been a violation or misinterpretation of any provision of this Agreement.
- 3:1.2 The term 'grievant' shall be considered to include any individual unit member, a group of unit members, or the Association. The individuals involved shall be specified when the Association is the grievant.

#### 3.2 **Time Limits**

3:2.1 A grievance shall be initiated in writing within thirty (30) calendar days of the event. If the grievant could not have reasonably known of the event, the initial time period shall commence from the point at which he/she could have known. Failure to file timely in one (1) instance shall not preclude filing on a similar issue which occurs subsequently.

#### 3:2.2

a. Failure of the administration involved at any step of this procedure to communicate a decision or hold a grievance meeting within the specified time limits shall permit the aggrieved to proceed immediately to the next step.

- b. Failure of the Association to follow the timelines specified herein shall constitute a forfeiture of the grievance.
- 3:2.3 The time limits specified at any step may be extended in any particular instance by mutual agreement between the Association and the superintendent. Such extensions must be in writing and signed by the parties.
- 3:2.4 Grievances occurring after May 20 may be timely filed until September 15.

#### 3:3 Informal Level

An informal attempt may be made to resolve any complaint by discussion between the grievant, the Association representative and the appropriate supervisor or administrator before the difference becomes a formalized grievance. Such informal attempt shall not circumvent the time limits specified in Section 3:2.1 of this Agreement.

#### 3:4 Formal Levels

Grievances shall be presented and adjusted in accordance with the following procedures.

- 3:4.1 **Step One -** A grievance shall be presented in writing through or by the authorized Association representative to the building principal. The principal shall within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the grievance meet with the grievant and the authorized Association representative in an effort to adjust the matter to the satisfaction of all concerned. The principal shall make a decision and communicate it in writing to the grievant and the authorized Association representative within twelve (12) calendar days of the date he/she initially received the written grievance. Step One of the grievance procedure shall be bypassed when a grievance occurs which affects two (2) or more buildings or when a grievance occurs in a building in which there is no principal. Such grievance shall commence at Step Two by the Association who shall identify each individual on whose behalf the grievance is filed. A copy of such grievance shall also be signed with each Step One administrator in the building(s) affected.
- 3:4.2 **Step Two** The decision of the building principal may be appealed in writing to the superintendent within ten (10) calendar days after its receipt by the grievant and the authorized Association representative. The superintendent shall within seven (7) calendar days after receipt of the appeal meet with the grievant and the authorized Association representative in an effort to adjust the matter to the satisfaction of all concerned. (If another meeting(s) is deemed necessary by the superintendent, then an additional seven (7) calendar days shall be provided.) The superintendent shall within fourteen (14) calendar days of receiving the written grievance (or fifteen (15) calendar days if a second meeting is held) make a decision and communicate it in writing to the grievant and the authorized Association representative.
- 3:4.3 **Step Three -** Within seven (7) calendar days after the receipt of the decision of the superintendent, an appeal in writing may be made by the grievant to the Board. Representatives of the Board shall hold a bearing within fifteen (15) calendar days of the receipt of such notice of appeal and shall render a decision in writing to the grievant and the authorized Association representative within fifteen (15) calendar days of receiving the written appeal.
- 3:4.4 **Step Four -** Within fifteen (15) calendar days after receipt of the decision of the Board, an appeal may be made by the Association to the Public Employment Relations Commission (PERC) for arbitration under its rules. Both parties agree to abide by PERC rules and procedures in the selection of an arbitrator. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding upon the parties, but the arbitrator shall have no authority to add to, subtract from or modify this Agreement.

#### 3:5 Costs

The fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be shared equally by the two parties.

#### 3:6 General Provisions

- 3:6.1 It is expected that meetings held under this procedure will be conducted outside of school hours and at a place which will afford an opportunity for all persons proper to be present. "Persons proper to be present," for the purposes of this section, is defined as the grievant, the authorized Association representative, and qualified witnesses. In the event meetings are held during school time, by mutual consent, none of the persons proper to be present shall suffer any loss of pay and shall be provided class coverage.
- 3:6.2 The Association shall be immediately notified when a grievance hearing is scheduled beyond the informal step and shall have the right to be present at all such hearings.
- 3:6.3 All parties and employees shall cooperate in the investigation of grievances.
- 3:6.4 The filing or pendence of any grievance shall not impede the normal management and continuing operation of the educational process.

# ARTICLE IV ASSOCIATION RIGHTS

#### 4:1 Use of Facilities

- 4:1.1 The Association shall have the exclusive use of a bulletin board in each faculty lounge and faculty dining room, and a bulletin board, paid for by the Association, in the faculty copy/work room for the posting of official Association notices and announcements.
- 4:1.2 The Association shall have the right to place materials in bargaining unit members' mailboxes and shall have the use of the interschool mail system. All reasonable effort will be made by the Association to ensure that students are not exposed to such communications.
- 4:1.3 The Association shall have the privilege of using buildings without cost for meetings before and after school when such facilities are not in use and provided there is no additional cost to the Board.
- 4:1.4 The Association shall have the right to use all designated office equipment when not otherwise in use in all schools except for the office typewriters. A typewriter shall be provided for Association use in each building. The Association shall pay for the reasonable cost of materials incident to such use.

#### 4:2 Released Time for Association Officials

- 4:2.1 The Board shall grant seven (7) days' leave per year with pay for the president of the Association or his/her designee, for the purposes of administering the contract for the benefit of the parties.
- 4:2.2 The Association president shall not be prevented from visiting schools, providing notification is first given to the building administrator and that such visits shall not interrupt work or normal school operations
- 4:2.3 One member of the bargaining unit may be granted a leave of absence without pay for one (1) year to work for the local or state Association of Teachers. This may be extended at the option of the Board.
- 4:2.4 The Association President's duty periods, or an equivalent time at a non-secondary school shall be reserved for Association business. A log of his Association business shall be kept and reviewed with the superintendent monthly.

#### 4:3 **Payroll Deductions**

- 4:3.1 In accordance with statutes, the Board agrees to deduct from the salary of each employee from whom it receives authorization to do so, the required amount of payment of Association dues. Such payments, accompanied by a list of employees for whom deductions have been made and the amount of the deductions, shall be forwarded to the NJEA within the first seven (7) calendar days of the following month. After the initial list is forwarded, only monthly modifications to such in addition to the appropriate sums shall be forwarded to the NJEA.
- 4:3.2 The Board agrees to deduct from the salary of each employee from whom it receives authorization to do so, the required amount of fees for the payment toward a disability plan of the Association's choice and the amounts deducted shall be forwarded to the appropriate office.

#### 4:3.3 **Representation Fee for Nonmembers**

- a. The Association president shall submit to the school district office a list of names of employees covered by this Agreement who are not currently dues-paying members of the Association. The school district, in compliance with the state law and this Agreement, will deduct from such employees' pay a representation fee equal to 85% of the amount set for Association members. The amount of total dues set for Association membership shall be at the sole determination of the Association and is to be paid by payroll deduction.
- b. The Association agrees to establish and maintain a Demand and Return system according to PL1979, c477.
- c. It is agreed by the parties to this Agreement that the Board shall have no other obligation or liability, financial or otherwise, (other than set forth herein) because of actions arising out of the understandings expressed in the

language of this Article. It is further understood that once the funds deducted are remitted to the Association, the disposition of such funds thereafter shall be the sole and exclusive obligation and responsibility of the Association.

d. The Association shall indemnify and save the Board (and administration) harmless against any and all claims, demands, suits or other forms of liability including reasonable legal and/or representation fees resulting from any of the provisions of this Article or in reliance on any list, notice or assignment furnished under this Article.

#### 4:4 Association Business

Association officers shall not be prevented from visiting schools provided notification is first given to the building administrator, and that such visits shall not interrupt work or the normal school operation.

#### 4:5 School Meetings

At the end of a faculty meeting or bona fide emergency faculty meeting(s), an Association representative may announce an Association meeting(s).

#### 4:6 General Provisions

- 4:6.1 The Board agrees to make available to the Association, upon request, any information in its possession which is a matter of public record which shall include but not be limited to a duplicate copy of the annual audit and budget that is submitted to the State Department of Education.
- 4:6.2 The Board shall provide to the Association a copy of the complete official minutes of all Board meetings which have been approved and made public. The Board agrees that the Association may make copies of all or part of these minutes and documentation at cost to the Board.
- 4:6.3 The Board shall provide the opportunity for the teachers from all buildings to collaborate with the administration in the planning of in-service workshops.
- 4:6.4 Each building principal will meet monthly at a time of mutual convenience with a representative of the Association for the purpose of discussion on matters concerning the administration of this Agreement. These meetings are not to be considered as negotiations and any conclusion arrived at as a result of such meetings shall not conflict with the collective bargaining agreement.
- 4:6.5 Any proposed changes in rules, regulations, and/or policy affecting working conditions must be negotiated between the Board and the Association in accordance with NJSA, Title 34, Chapter 123, PL1974.

# ARTICLE V WORKING CONDITIONS

#### 5:1 Fair Employment Practices

- 5:1.1 Any tenured employee's suspension or dismissal for cause by the Board shall be controlled by NJSA, 18A 6-10 et seq.
- 5:1.2 Any nontenured teacher who is not offered a subsequent contract by the Board will be given written reasons upon request. The teacher shall have the right to appeal in accordance with the mandates of NJSA, 18A 27-32, and the time frames specified therein, and may be represented by an Association official and/or legal representative except that failure to grant a contract to a nontenured teacher shall not be grievable.
- 5:1.3 The Board shall notify a teacher that his/her contract has or has not been renewed no later than May 30 or such date as provided by law. Failure to notify is considered a renewal.
- 5:1.4 The Board ensures that any individual or group may take appropriate legal steps in their self-interest without fear or reprisal.

#### 5:2 Academic Freedom

- 5:2.1 Employees shall have the freedom in the classroom to discuss, in a balanced, objective manner, such topics as are relevant to their subject and appropriate to the grade level. Personal opinions, if stated, shall be identified as such.
- 5:2.2 Employees shall select textbooks, AVA materials, and other teaching aids used for instructional purposes in the classroom, subject to the Board and/or administrative approval.
- 5:2.3 Teachers shall not be mandated a prescribed, inflexible framework or methodology. It is further assumed that constructive criticism or help offered a teacher is both a duty and a responsibility laid upon the principal and/or supervisory staff by the School Board and the superintendent in order to help in the professional growth and competence of the teacher involved. This action, when necessary, must not be interpreted as discipline or reprimand.

#### 5:3 Assignments

- 5:3.1 An involuntary assignment shall be made only after a meeting between the teacher involved, the superintendent, and the principal or principals of the schools involved at which time the teacher shall be notified of the assignment.
- 5:3.2 The Board agrees that teachers shall receive their assignments for the next school year prior to the last day of school. Changes required after this date will be mailed to their file address. Employees who are transferred to another building shall be provided one (1) compensatory day. The day will be an in-service day as determined by the building principal in consultation with the teacher. The Board shall provide custodial services as appropriate to move the affected teacher's equipment, material, and supplies.
- 5:3.3 Every teacher assigned to grades 5-12 or other fully departmentalized grade(s) shall be guaranteed a lunch period of at least thirty (30) minutes. K-4 teachers shall be guaranteed a lunch period of at least forty-five (45) minutes, except for occasions when assigned to regular duty as per contract. K-4 teachers will be guaranteed a daily duty-free lunch period of at least forty-five (45) minutes. Teachers shall not be restricted to their respective buildings during lunch periods.
- 5:3.4 Nonteaching duties may be assigned according to state laws and applicable legal decisions. There shall be no discrimination based upon sex, race, religion, or age in the assignment of such duties.
- 5:3.5 Academic preparations in the high school or other fully departmentalized grade(s), but excluding special education classes that are self-contained, shall not exceed four (4) in number, except on a voluntary basis.
- 5:3.6 When a teacher relinquishes a preparation period, he/she shall be compensated at the rate of \$29.00 per class coverage for the 2005-2006 school year, \$30.00 for the 2006-2007 school year, \$31.00 for the 2007-2008 and \$33.00 for the 2008-2009 school year.
- 5:3.7 Elementary preparation periods shall be scheduled at an average of 200 minutes per whole week. No block of time less than thirty (30) minutes in length will be used to compute elementary preparation time. All full time teachers in grades K-4 will have a daily preparation period. Preparation time in grades 5-12 and other fully departmentalized grade(s) shall be guaranteed at one (1) period per day per teacher.
- 5:3.8 Every teacher assigned to the high school or other fully departmentalized grade(s) shall normally have five (5) teaching periods per school day. As of September 2006, and thereafter, the Board shall have the option of instituting a nine period day in the middle school. It is understood should such a change be made, the length of the day shall not change from the negotiated length of time.
  - a. Teachers required to teach a sixth class for a full school year will be paid an annual stipend of \$2,750.00 in 2005-2006, \$3,000.00 in 2006-2007, \$3,250.00 in 2007-2008 and \$3,500.00 in 2008-2009. Pro-rata payment of the stipend shall be paid to a teacher who is assigned to teach, or teaches, a sixth period class for less than a full school yeas, or for less than 5 days per week.
- 5:3.9 Teachers who have six (6) preparation periods per week shall not be compensated for the loss of a single preparation period to cover a class during that week.
- 5:3.10 When on an occasional basis a teacher is required to cover a sixth class and loses a preparation period, his/her duty period shall still be covered by that teacher.

- 5:3.11 Teachers who are relieved of a duty period to cover a class on an occasional basis shall not be compensated. If a teacher loses a preparation period to cover a class but is then relieved of a duty period, that teacher shall not be compensated.
- 5:3.12 The conference schedule shall be used in the elementary schools on all early dismissal days, except for emergency closings, to insure that all teachers receive preparation time during the student day.

#### 5:4 Attendance Register

No teacher shall be required to maintain a central attendance register.

#### 5:5 Calendar

- 5:5.1 A representative school calendar committee of seven (7) members composed of the superintendent or designee; two (2) administrators; two (2) Association certified employees, and two (2) noncertified employees (secretaries) shall meet to formulate a tentative calendar. The committee shall agree and submit a recommended calendar to the superintendent. Prior to its adoption by the Board, the school calendar will be submitted to the Association for its suggestions.
- 5:5.2 The in-school work year for teachers employed on a ten (10) month basis shall not exceed 186 days. The NJEA convention days will not be counted as student or teacher calendar days.
- 5:5.3 The first day of the school year shall be an in-service day.

#### 5:5.4 Substitute Lesson Plans

Recognizing the need for adequate planning, teachers shall make available each day lesson plans, schedules, seating plans, and other information for the next school day or for longer periods as may be required by the principal, supervisor or department heads. These materials shall always be available for substitutes in a teacher's absence.

#### 5:6 Class Interruptions

The administration in each building shall establish a given time period for normal, routine announcements.

#### 5:7 Emergency School Closing

In the event that the schools are closed due to inclement weather, the telephone chain for contacting and informing bargaining unit members shall begin no later than one (1) hour before the earliest report time.

#### 5:8 **Evaluations and Personnel Files**

- 5:8.1 All observations and evaluations of a teacher shall be made openly and with full knowledge of the teacher. Each formal observation shall concern itself solely with the function or class observed and shall be reviewed and signed by the teacher and administrator within ten (10) school days.
- 5:8.2 Evaluations and observations shall be signed by the teacher to signify that he/she has been given the opportunity to read the observation or evaluation report. Signatures shall not be construed to indicate agreement with or acceptance of the observation or the evaluation.
- 5:8.3 If a teacher is dissatisfied with an observation or evaluation, he/she may make a written statement of response, within thirty (30) days except that if a grievance has been filed, the time limit will be extended to fifteen (15) days beyond the resolution of the grievance, and have it permanently attached to the observation or evaluation and made part of the permanent file.
- 5:8.4 The evaluation of teachers shall be in accordance with the guidelines developed by the State Department of Education. Teachers shall be informed of the district's evaluation policy and procedures at the beginning of each school year, and new teachers shall be so informed in writing at the time they receive their initial assignment.
- 5:8.5 The district shall continue not requiring teachers to submit to video tape or electronic evaluation or observation.

- 5:8.6 No teacher will be disciplined, reprimanded, reduced in rank or compensation without just cause. It is further assumed that constructive feedback or help offered a teacher is both a duty and a responsibility laid upon the principal and/or supervisory staff by the School Board and the superintendent in order to help in the professional growth and competence of the teacher involved. This action, when necessary, must not be interpreted as discipline or reprimand.
- 5:8.7 No material derogatory to a teacher's conduct, service, character or personality shall be placed in his/her personnel file without just cause, and the teacher shall have an opportunity to review the material. The teacher shall acknowledge that he/she has had the opportunity to review such material by affixing his/her signature to the copy to be filed with the express understanding that such signature in no way indicated agreement with the contents thereof. The teacher shall also have the right to submit a written answer to such material and his/her material shall be reviewed by the superintendent or designee and attached to the file copy within forty-five (45) days except that if a grievance had been filed, the time limit will be extended to fifteen (15) days beyond the resolution of the grievance.
- 5:8.8 The Board agrees to treat all personnel files confidentially. All teacher files containing evaluations and materials relating to teacher performance shall be treated in the following manner.
  - a. A teacher shall have the right to inspect the contents of his/her files.
  - b. The Board shall provide, at reasonable cost to each requesting teacher, copies of the records and reports contained therein.
  - c. A teacher shall have the right to answer any material filed, and his/her written answer shall be attached to the file copies.
  - d. Although the Board agrees to protect the confidentiality of personal references, academic credentials, and other similar documents, it shall not establish any separate evaluation file which is not available for the teacher's inspection.
  - e. No student shall be granted access to personal teacher information including paychecks, evaluations, address, phone number, etc.
- 5:8.9 A teacher and his/her methods shall not be criticized in the presence of a student, member of the public, or other member of the teaching staff by any administrator without justifiable, substantive reasons.
- 5:8.10 If any complaint regarding a teacher is made to the administration which is used in a written evaluation or disciplinary hearing, appropriate disclosure will be made as to the complaint sufficient to afford the teacher the opportunity to respond to such charges. If the charge is unjustified, the charge shall be removed from the file.

#### 5:9 Meetings

#### 5:9.1

- a. The Board agrees that regular faculty meetings shall be limited to a maximum of two (2) per month per building and shall be limited in length to forty-five (45) minutes from the end of the workday, except in the high school where the 45 minute meeting will start no later than 15 minutes after the end of the workday. Every attempt will be made to plan faculty meetings on designated days in each building at least seven (7) days in advance. However, due to emergencies, special arrangements will be made through the building principal and the building representative. Pay day will be avoided as a faculty meeting day.
- b. In any building in which two (2) meetings were held in a given month, then one (1) additional meeting may be held in that month only for a bona fide emergency reason provided that the superintendent or assistant superintendent has informed the Association president or building representative of the necessity for such a meeting.
- 5:9.2 The Board agrees that required teacher attendance shall be limited to a maximum of three (3) evening meetings per year for the purposes of parent conferences (2) and open house (1). For the term of this agreement, teachers may leave after all buses have been dismissed on evening conference days, provided that all scheduled parent meetings are reasonably distributed among the assigned days and are a minimum of 15 minutes each.

#### 5:10 Pay for Travel and Traveling Teachers

- 5:10.1 Teachers required to use their personal automobile in the performance of their assigned duties will be compensated at the rate authorized by the I.R.S. for deduction for business travel.
- 5:10.2 Teachers will be provided 20 minutes traveling time between buildings.
- 5:10.3 Traveling teachers will be provided a reserved parking space close to the entrance of the building.

#### 5:11 Pupil Grades

- 5:11.1 The teacher shall maintain the responsibility to determine grades and other evaluations of students within the grading policies of the Monroe Township School District based upon his/her professional judgment of available criteria pertinent to any given subject area or activity to which he/she is responsible. No grade or evaluation shall be changed without notification and the opportunity for consultation.
- 5:11.2 A teacher will be consulted prior to the promotion of a student by the administration when this promotion is in conflict with the teacher's recommendation for retention.

#### 5:12 Responsibility for Monies Collected

No teachers will be held responsible in the event that monies they are required to collect are lost or stolen. However, each teacher is expected to exercise reasonable care in the handling of these monies.

#### 5:13 Solicitation

Vendors shall not solicit their wares at faculty meetings.

- 5:14 School Day
- 5:14.1 The workday for teachers shall be seven (7) hours and five (5) minutes.
- 5:14.2 No teacher shall be required to clock in or clock out by hours and minutes.

# ARTICLE VI TEACHER FACILITIES AND RIGHTS

- 6:1 Facilities
- 6:1.1 The Board agrees to provide in each school building a clean, attractive and comfortable employees' lounge.
- 6:1.2 No teacher shall be required to purchase lounge furniture or furnishings.
- 6:1.3 Restrooms shall be maintained in each building for each gender for exclusive use of employees.
- 6:1.4 Special clothing will be provided smocks for art and home economics, lab coats for science, shop aprons for industrial arts, and proper laundering services for all clothing provided.
- 6:1.5 No teacher shall be required to conduct his/her duties under unsafe or hazardous conditions.
- 6:1.6 The Board shall provide to the Association a copy of the State safety guidelines for each building.
- 6:1.7 The Board shall reimburse teachers for the cost of any clothing or personal property damaged as a result of restraining students or personal attack in the discharge of his/her duties within the scope of employment.

#### 6:2 Rights

6:2.1 Each teacher shall be provided sufficient supplies and materials for performing his/her teaching duties.

- 6:2.2 The Board agrees to provide a professionally printed copy of the negotiated collective bargaining agreement to each employee, plus twelve (12) copies for Association purposes. The costs are to be borne by the Board.
- 6:2.3 Each teacher shall be provided a file cabinet, storage space, and other necessary equipment and supplies in order to perform his/her assigned duties.
- 6:2.4 Each teacher shall have available audiovisual equipment necessary to perform his/her teaching function. It is understood that reasonable effort will be made to maintain such equipment.
- 6:2.5 Any teacher required to meet with an administrator shall be given prior notice of the items to be discussed at the meeting. Whenever a teacher is required to appear before the Board or any other administrator in an investigatory interview which he/she reasonably believes may lead to disciplinary action, he/she shall be given prior notice of the meeting and shall be entitled to have an Association representative present to advise him/her during such meeting. If an investigatory meeting between an administrator and a teacher, which the teacher did not believe would lead to discussion of disciplinary action and at which no Association representative is present, does lead to discussion of disciplinary action, the teacher has the right to recess the meeting until such time as an Association representative can be present.
- 6:2.6 Any teacher who requests a meeting with any other administrator concerning a disciplinary action shall be entitled to same and may have an Association representative present.

# ARTICLE VII LEAVES OF ABSENCE

#### 7:1 Sick Leave

- 7:1.1 There will be twelve (12) sick days, two (2) of which may be used as family illness days, with pay per year. Days not used shall be credited towards the employee's accumulation of sick leave.
- 7:1.2 The Board or the superintendent may require the submission of a physician's certificate as provided in NJSA, Title 18A 30-4. In cases of questionable recurring absence, the employee, administration and the MTEA building representative will be advised, and a physician's certificate may be required for each subsequent absence in accordance with NJSA Title 18A 30-4.
- 7:1.3 Teachers shall be given a written accounting of accumulated sick leave days no later than September 30 of each school year.
- 7:1.4 Any teacher absent due to illness beyond annual sick leave and accumulated sick leave may request the differential pay between his/her regular pay and the substitute rate. Such determination shall be at the discretion of the Board upon recommendation of the superintendent on a case-by-case basis.
- 7:1.5 Any teacher having perfect attendance for a year's service excluding two (2) personal days, professional, bereavement, military leave shall receive three hundred (\$300) dollars per school year.

#### 7:2 **Death in Family**

- 7:2.1 In the event of death in the immediate family, teachers shall be granted with pay for attending the deathbed, funeral or to make funeral arrangements as hereinafter stated.
  - a. An allowance of five (5) days shall be granted in the case of death in any of the following:
    - 1. Employee's parents, spouse, children, brothers, sisters, parents of the employee's spouse and other persons residing as a member of the household of the employee,
    - 2. Legally adopted members of the family and step-relationships as outlined in a.1.
  - b. An allowance of three (3) days shall be granted to attend the funeral of any other relative of the following:
    - 1. uncle, aunt, grandparents and grandchildren of the employee,

- 2. brother-in-law, sister-in-law, son-in-law and daughter-in-law of the employee.
- c. In the event of a teacher or student death in the Monroe Township School District, the principal or immediate supervisor of said teacher or student shall grant to an appropriate number of teachers sufficient time off to attend the funeral.

#### 7:3 **Personal Leave Days**

All teachers are entitled to three (3) personal leave days without requiring in advance the specific approval of the administration, subject to the following restrictions.

- a. Except in the event of an emergency making such notice impossible, at least forty-eight (48) hours' notice shall be given in order to provide for substitutes.
- b. Such leave may be granted immediately prior to or after any scheduled vacation or school holiday, to up to 5% of certificated staff upon written approval of the assistant superintendent. Application procedures will be developed by the parties.
- c. All personal days unused at the end of each school year will be converted to sick leave and added to the employee's accumulation.

#### 7:4 **Professional Leave Days**

There shall be two (2) professional days granted at the discretion of the superintendent or designee.

#### 7:5 Child-Rearing Leave

A teacher anticipating the birth of his/her child may apply for and will be granted an unpaid leave of absence subject to the following.

- a. He/she provides medical certification of the anticipated date of birth.
- b. He/she applies in writing for such leave no less than sixty (60) days prior to the commencement of leave.
- c. He/she continues such leave until the beginning of the next academic marking period.
- c. Such teacher may apply also for an additional one- (1) year leave and such leave shall be granted. Application for such extension must be made no later than April 1 of the prior school year.
- e. Child-rearing leave shall not exceed a maximum of two (2) academic years.
- f. Entitled benefits at the time of commencement of child-rearing leave shall be frozen until return from such leave.
- g. Any teacher may apply for and will be granted this leave in the case of adoption by the teacher of a child five (5) years of age or younger under the same terms as specified herein.
- h. A teacher on such leave may apply for reinstatement during this leave and shall be reinstated provided that a suitable vacancy exists.
- i. A teacher on such leave may apply for placement on the substitute teaching list at the substitute per diem rate.

#### 7:6 Sabbatical Leave

A sabbatical leave may be granted to a teacher by the Board for study including study in another area or for other reasons of value to the school system. The sabbatical leave may not be used for acquiring a Bachelors Degree. The program of study shall be presented in writing to the superintendent of schools for approval upon application for the sabbatical leave. Sabbatical leave may be granted, subject to the following conditions.

- a. If there are sufficient qualified applicants, sabbatical leaves may be granted to a maximum of two (2) professional staff at any one time.
- b. Requests for sabbatical leave must be received by the superintendent in writing in such form as may be mutually agreed upon by the Association and the superintendent, no later than December 1 and action must be taken on all such requests no later than February 15 of the school year preceding the school year for which the sabbatical is requested.
- c. The teacher must have completed at least seven (7) full years of service in the Monroe Township School District to qualify.
- d. A staff member on a sabbatical leave (either for one-half (11/2) of a school year or a full school year) shall be paid by the Board at fifty-five (55) percent of the salary according to the regular payroll procedure established for the school district and shall be eligible for the normal insurance coverage offered regular employees for one completed academic year beginning in September and ending in June.
- e. No sick leave shall accrue during the period the employee is absent from service, however, unused sick leave shall be restored without loss when the employee returns to regular teaching duties.
- f. The salary payments under this clause should be decreased by any amount that it plus any grant-in-aid that may be received by the teacher exceeds his/her expected salary.
- g. Upon return from sabbatical leave, a teacher shall be placed on the salary schedule at the level which he/she would have achieved had he/she remained actively employed in the system during the period of his/her absence.
- h. Final determination regarding the granting of sabbatical leave rests solely with the Board of Education.

#### 7:7 Jury Duty

An employee required to serve on jury duty shall be paid the difference between jury duty fee and salary. Each teacher assigned to jury duty shall advise the superintendent in writing within five (5) school days of receiving notification.

#### 7:8 **Extended Leaves**

- 7:8.1 An extended leave of absence without pay up to two (2) years shall be granted to tenured teachers who join the Peace Corps, Vista, The Teacher Corps, or serve as an exchange teacher, and who are full-time participants in any such programs. It is agreed that teachers taking leave under this section shall be limited to not more than two (2) percent of the teaching staff at any one time.
- 7:8.2 It is further agreed that such leave and similar long-term leaves of absence once granted shall not be repeated in less than seven (7) years and that similar requests from other eligible teachers shall have priority.
- 7:8.3 All requests for extended leaves of absence will be filed with the superintendent in writing at least three (3) months prior to the end of the school year and shall be confirmed by the superintendent as soon as possible thereafter. Such requests shall contain the purpose of the leave and the expected beginning and termination dates.
- 7:8.4 All benefits to which a tenured teacher was entitled at the time of a leave of absence without pay commenced, including unused accumulated sick leave and credits toward sabbatical eligibility, shall be restored upon his/her return.
- 7:8.5 Teachers on leave of absence without pay for study and related professional experience shall be permitted to perform substitute teaching services.
- 7:8.6 No more than two (2) teachers each year who have completed seven (7) years service in Monroe Township shall be granted a leave of absence without pay for a full academic year upon written application to the Board of Education. Such application must be submitted not less than sixty (60) days before the beginning of the leave. Teachers who receive this leave must wait an additional seven (7) years before submitting another application for leave under this article.

#### 7:9 Military Leave

- 7:9.1 A military leave of absence without pay shall be granted to a tenured teacher inducted in the armed forces for a required length of service, according to the terms of the Selective Service and Training Act of 1940 and subsequent amendments by Congress. Upon return to the school system, such teacher shall be placed on the step of the salary scale as required by law without forfeiture of any eligible seniority to a tenured teacher. The granting of such leave shall be consistent with the board of education policy dated January 19, 2005.
- 7:9.2 Teachers called for reserve duty shall receive pay as provided for in NJSA, Title 38 23-1, provided they immediately notify the administration in writing and request of the government agency in writing that such requirement for duty be scheduled during nonteaching time.

#### 7:10 Leave to Care for Family member with Serious Health Condition Under the Family Leave Act

- A teacher may be granted an extended leave of absence without pay in order to care for a family member (as defined in the Family Leave Act) who has a serious health condition. The employee shall provide at least fifteen (15) days prior notice to the commencement of the leave, except where emergent circumstances warrant shorter notice.
- b. Employees desiring family leave must submit a leave request indicating a prearranged commencement and expiration date. An employee may return to work prior to the prearranged expiration of the family leave period at the discretion of the Board.
- c. Insofar as required by the Act, the Board will maintain in effect, for up to the maximum 12 week duration of leave under the Act, the employee's health insurance coverage as if the employee had continued in active employment.
- d. An employee desiring to take leave in excess of the maximum weeks allowable under the Family Leave Act must include a request for this additional leave time along with the original Family Leave Act request. Leave shall be for the remainder of the school year.

# ARTICLE VIII SUMMER SCHOOL, HOME INSTRUCTION, TITLE PROGRAMS

- 8:1 All openings for positions in the accredited summer school, home instruction, Federal projects and other special programs shall be posted by the superintendent in each school and posted on the district website and emailed to the Association president.
- 8:2 Summer school and workshop openings shall be posted no later than May 15. Those teachers who have been employed shall be notified not later than June 5 or earlier whenever possible.
- 8:3 In filling such positions, consideration shall be given to a teacher's area of competence, major and/or minor field of study, quality of teaching performance, attendance record and length of service in the Monroe Township Public School District.
- 8:4 Home instruction, Saturday suspension and Summer Completion School shall be compensated at the rate of \$32.00 per hour for 2005-2006, \$32.00 for 2006-2007 and \$32.00 for 2007-2008 and \$33.00 for 2008-2009.
- 8:5 In the event that the Board institute a summer school, the Board agrees to reopen negotiations over salaries and terms and conditions of employment for summer school staff.
- 8:6 Teachers who are assigned by the administration to chaperone school events (such as concerts, skating parties, dances, sporting events, etc.) beyond the school day shall be compensated at the rate of \$69.00 for 2005-2006, \$69.00 for 2006-2007, \$ 69.00 for 2007-2008 and \$69.00 for 2008-2009.
- 8:7 In elementary schools, teachers who are assigned by the administration to conduct night performances for concerts, gym shows, chorus recitals, art shows, science fairs, shall be compensated at the rate of \$82.00 for 2005-2006, \$82.00 for 2006-2007, \$82.00 for 2007-2008 and \$82.00 for 2008-2009.

#### 8:8 Child Study Team Services

Per case rate for Monroe Township Child Study Team staff for summer work will be:

C.S.T. SUMMER PER CASE RATES	
Effective 7/01/05-6/30/09	
Completed Case Evaluation, including typed report	\$190
Completed Case Evaluation and Interpretive/IEP Conference, including typed report	\$220
Psychoeducational Battery (Psychologist only), including typed report	\$340
Psychoeducational Battery, including Interpretive/IEP conference and typed report	\$370
Collaborative Assessment Summary	1 hr. at contract rate
Curriculum-based Assessment	2 hrs. at contract rate
Standardized Assessment Update	1 hr. at contract rate
Evaluation Planning Meeting	.5 hr. at contract rate
Per Case, Case Management	3 hrs. at contract rate
Participation in Annual Review	1 hr. at contract rate
Transfer Case Review, Records Retrieval, Processing, and Scheduling	2 hrs. at contract rate

## ARTICLE IX PROMOTIONS, TRANSFERS, AND VACANCIES

- 9:1 All teachers shall have the right to request a transfer. Such request may indicate preference of grade, subject, and/or department assignment. Transfer requests must be made in writing to the superintendent within thirty (30) calendar days prior to April 30. Specific justification for the transfer must then be submitted in writing and the employee requesting such transfer may arrange a meeting with the superintendent or designee to consider or review the request before any decision is made. This is not to preclude requests at any other time during the school year for openings which may subsequently occur. Determination on all requests for transfers resides with the Board.
- 9:2 If a teacher is to be transferred to another building involuntarily, then such teacher shall be given advance notice, if possible, and shall also have the right to meet with the administration to discuss such change. If the teacher is still dissatisfied with the administrative determination, then a grievance may be filed. It is expressly understood that such grievance may not proceed beyond the Board level and that final determination concerning such transfer resides with the Board.
- 9:3 All vacancies for teaching, promotional or new positions shall be posted in all buildings ten (10) working days prior to application deadline. The notice posted shall include position title, application procedure, necessary qualifications and when applicable, grade level and building. Transfer within the school year resides solely with the school district within the limits of this Agreement.

- 9:3.1 When vacancies occur during the summer months, posting notices will be mailed to the Association president.
- 9:4 All vacancies arising because of new or special project positions shall be posted in every school and on the district website clearly setting forth a description of and the qualifications necessary for the position including the duties and salary.
- 9:5 It is understood that appointment to, or lack of appointment to, or retention in a voluntary position is not grievable.
- 9:6 A list of available supplemental positions shall be presented by the Board to the Association by September 30. The Association will be notified as positions are filled thereafter.

# ARTICLE X CURRICULUM

- 10:1 Curriculum decisions will not be made without the consultation of the faculty responsible for the institution of said changes. The Association shall be advised of all proposed curriculum changes.
- 10:2 Teachers who are required to work during the summer or beyond the regular workday on researching, writing or budgeting curriculum changes shall be compensated at the rate of \$32.00 per hour for 2005-2006, \$32.00 for 2006-2007, \$32.00 for 2007-2008 and \$33.00 for 2008-2009.
- 10:3 The superintendent or his designee will provide the Association with a copy of the district's educational goals/objectives prior to final Board approval.

# ARTICLE XI BENEFITS AND MEDICAL COVERAGE

11:1

- a. The Board agrees to pay the full cost for family coverage for all full-time employees for PPO (Preferred Provider Organization) or POS (Point of Service) Coverage for Blue Cross, Blue Shield, Rider J and Major Medical for the term of this contract. A summary of the benefits is attached as Schedule B.
- 11:2 The Board will pay full cost for a \$10.00/\$15.00/1X co-pay prescription plan for employee and family. Oral contraceptives will be included effective January 1, 2006.
- 11:3 The Board will pay the full family dental premium for 2005-2009. Such premium costs will be capped at the premium in effect at the end of the contract. The maximum annual benefit will be \$1,500 per insured effective January 1, 2006.
- 11:4 Any teacher who has a regular, permanent or standard certificate issued by the State of New Jersey who takes a course or courses in the academic field he/she teaches to better his/her teaching profession shall be reimbursed for the tuition for such courses according to the following:
  - a. Grade C or better or pass up to \$1,175.00 in 2005-2006, \$1,225.00 in 2006-2007, \$1,275.00 in 2007-2008, and \$1,325.00 in 2008-2009.
  - b. Approval for tuition reimbursement must be secured from the superintendent prior to the teacher's taking the course.
  - c. Courses not directly related to the teaching area may be considered upon application and permission of the superintendent.
  - d. A teacher may be reimbursed up to four hundred (\$400) dollars to cover the cost of attending professional workshops, training sessions and meetings, subject to prior approval of the superintendent. This amount may be applied to paragraph (a) above.
- 11:5 The Board shall provide a description of insurance coverage and benefits to each employee.

- 11:6 Upon retirement from this district, a teacher will be reimbursed for unused sick leave if he/she has accumulated at least fifty (50) sick days. Payment shall be based on thirty (30) percent of the per diem rate for the B.A. Step 5 in effect during the teacher's final year of service.
- 11:7 Teachers retiring from Monroe Township Public Schools after twenty-five (25) years of service in the district will have the health insurance coverage provided herein contained until age 65. The Board will cover all expenses to the extent that the terms of the contracts and policies with the insurance carriers permit. Coverage will be for the employee and spouse where applicable at retirement time.

## ARTICLE XII SALARIES

#### 12:1 Credit Union - Summer Payment Plan

- a. All ten-(10) month teachers shall be provided by the Board with the opportunity to have a fixed amount deducted from their contract salary utilizing payroll deductions and forwarded to a credit union selected by the Association and the Board.
- b. Teachers wishing to participate in the credit union must enroll with the Board Business Office no later than August 1 for deductions to be made in the following contract year. Enrollment or changes in the amount to be deducted will not be allowed thereafter except that the new employees may sign up within thirty(30) calendar days commencing employment.
- c. After the initial payment accompanied by a list of employee deductions, the Board shall submit monthly to the credit union a check for the appropriate total amount deducted, and those changes due to separation or new employee participation.
- d. It is expressly understood that the Board is relieved of any liability after forwarding the proper amount deducted, and the Association shall indemnify and save harmless the Board for any liability and/or legal or representation costs necessary to defend any action based on this credit union participation.
- e. Teachers not utilizing the credit union will be paid on a ten-(10) month basis.
- 12:2 Teachers qualifying for salary increases by reason of completion of academic courses and degrees shall have until October 1 or March 1 to submit proof of completion to the Board Secretary in order to have their salaries adjusted retroactively to September 1 or February 1, respectively.
- 12:3 Teachers shall receive salary payments every other Friday or the last day before a holiday. In the Fall, the first paycheck shall be issued on the second Friday of the school calendar.
- 12:4 All salaries for the duration of the contract are included in this document as Schedule A – Salary Guide Schedule C – Co-Curricular Guide Schedule D – Athletic Guide

## ARTICLE XIII GENERAL

- 13:1 Concerning terms and conditions of employment, the Board agrees that it will make no changes in the rules and regulations of the Board without prior negotiations as governed by Title 34, Chapter 123, PL1974.
- 13:2 The Board shall allocate funds to each teacher for the purpose of purchasing educational materials to become part of the property of the school district as follows, K-5 teachers \$90.00 in 2005-2009, teachers grade 6-12 and Child Study Team members \$70.00 in 2005-2009. Members of the Child Study Team may utilize their funds for professional dues or professional periodicals provided prior approval is secured from the administration in writing each year.
- 13:3 No Board policy or rule will conflict with this Agreement. The Board retains all rights and powers granted to it under applicable statutes, except as specified herein to manage the school district.

## ARTICLE XIV NEGOTIATIONS and SUCCESSOR AGREEMENT

14 The parties agree to commence negotiations in accordance with the requirements of NJSA, Title 34, Chapter 123, PL1974.

# ARTICLE XV GUARANTEE CLAUSE

- 15:1 During the term of this Agreement, the Board will appropriate in its annual budget sufficient monies to provide for, maintain and guarantee every economic provision set forth herein.
- 15:2 The Board further agrees that nothing contained herein shall be interpreted and/or applied so as to eliminate or reduce nor otherwise change or detract from any teacher benefits or past practice in a labor relations sense existing prior to its effective date.

# ARTICLE XVI CONFORMITY TO LAW

16 Should any provision of this Agreement be held or determined by any court or agency having jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, then same shall not invalidate the other provisions thereof that are severable there from.

## ARTICLE XVII DURATION

17 This Agreement shall commence July 1, 2005 and shall conclude on June 30, 2009. It includes the contract from July 1, 2005 through June 30, 2006 and the contract from July 1, 2006 through June 30, 2009.

#### 18 No Reprisal Clause

The Board agrees not to retaliate against anyone who has helped in any way whatsoever to bring about this settlement.

Monroe Township Education Association Monroe Township Board of Education

President

President

Secretary

Secretary

**Negotiations Co-Chairman** 

**Negotiations Co-Chairman** 

# **SCHEDULE A**

# MONROE TOWNSHIP TEACHERS SALARY GUIDE 2005-2006

Step	BA	BA+15	BA+30	BA+45	MA	MA+15	MA+30	MA+45	PHD
1	42,469	43,719	44,219	44,719	45,219	45,719	46,219	46,719	47,719
2	42,669	43,919	44,419	44,919	45,419	45,919	46,419	46,919	47,919
3	42,874	44,124	44,624	45,124	45,624	46,124	46,624	47,124	48,124
4	43,387	44,637	45,137	45,637	46,137	46,637	47,137	47,637	48,637
5	44,515	45,765	46,265	46,765	47,265	47,765	48,265	48,765	49,765
6	45,131	46,381	46,881	47,381	47,881	48,381	48,881	49,381	50,381
7	47,285	48,535	49,035	49,535	50,035	50,535	51,035	51,535	52,535
8	48,310	49,560	50,060	50,560	51,060	51,560	52,060	52,560	53,560
9	49,541	50,791	51,291	51,791	52,291	52,791	53,291	53,791	54,791
10	50,567	51,817	52,317	52,817	53,317	53,817	54,317	54,817	55,817
11	53,131	54,381	54,881	55,381	55,881	56,381	56,881	57,381	58,381
12	56,208	57,458	57,958	58,458	58,958	59,458	59,958	60,458	61,458
13	61,234	62,484	62,984	63,484	63,984	64,484	64,984	65,484	66,484
14	70,000	71,250	71,750	72,250	72,750	73,250	73,750	74,250	75,250

MONROE TOWNSHIP TEACHERS SALARY GU	IDE
2006-2007	

Step	BA	BA+15	BA+30	BA+45	MA	MA+15	MA+30	MA+45	PHD
1	43,825	45,075	45,575	46,075	46,575	47,075	47,575	48,075	49,075
2	44,025	45,275	45,775	46,275	46,775	47,275	47,775	48,275	49,275
3	44,225	45,475	45,975	46,475	46,975	47,475	47,975	48,475	49,475
4	44,754	46,004	46,504	47,004	47,504	48,004	48,504	49,004	50,004
5	45,918	47,168	47,668	48,168	48,668	49,168	49,668	50,168	51,168
6	46,552	47,802	48,302	48,802	49,302	49,802	50,302	50,802	51,802
7	48,774	50,024	50,524	51,024	51,524	52,024	52,524	53,024	54,024
8	49,832	51,082	51,582	52,082	52,582	53,082	53,582	54,082	55,082
9	51,102	52,352	52,852	53,352	53,852	54,352	54,852	55,352	56,352
10	52,160	53,410	53,910	54,410	54,910	55,410	55,910	56,410	57,410
11	54,805	56,055	56,555	57,055	57,555	58,055	58,555	59,055	60,055
12	57,979	59,229	59,729	60,229	60,729	61,229	61,729	62,229	63,229
13	65,092	66,342	66,842	67,342	67,842	68,342	68,842	69,342	70,342
14	72,205	73,455	73,955	74,455	74,955	75,455	75,955	76,455	77,455

# MONROE TOWNSHIP TEACHERS SALARY GUIDE 2007-2008

Step	BA	BA+15	BA+30	BA+45	MA	MA+15	MA+30	MA+45	PHD
1	44,500	45,800	46,300	46,800	47,300	47,800	48,300	48,800	49,800
2	46,513	47,813	48,313	48,813	49,313	49,813	50,313	50,813	51,813
3	46,713	48,013	48,513	49,013	49,513	50,013	50,513	51,013	52,013
4	46,913	48,213	48,713	49,213	49,713	50,213	50,713	51,213	52,213
5	47,613	48,913	49,413	49,913	50,413	50,913	51,413	51,913	52,913
6	48,813	50,113	50,613	51,113	51,613	52,113	52,613	53,113	54,113
7	50,013	51,313	51,813	52,313	52,813	53,313	53,813	54,313	55,313
8	51,213	52,513	53,013	53,513	54,013	54,513	55,013	55,513	56,513
9	52,413	53,713	54,213	54,713	55,213	55,713	56,213	56,713	57,713
10	53,713	55,013	55,513	56,013	56,513	57,013	57,513	58,013	59,013
11	56,437	57,737	58,237	58,737	59,237	59,737	60,237	60,737	61,737
12	60,655	61,955	62,455	62,955	63,455	63,955	64,455	64,955	65,955
13	67,455	68,755	69,255	69,755	70,255	70,755	71,255	71,755	72,755
14	74,355	75,655	76,155	76,655	77,155	77,655	78,155	78,655	79,655

# MONROE TOWNSHIP TEACHERS SALARY GUIDE 2008-2009

Step	BA	BA+15	BA+30	BA+45	MA	MA+15	MA+30	MA+45	PHD
1	45,000	46,500	47,000	47,500	48,000	48,500	49,000	49,500	50,500
2	48,573	50,073	50,573	51,073	51,573	52,073	52,573	53,073	54,073
3	48,773	50,273	50,773	51,273	51,773	52,273	52,773	53,273	54,273
4	48,973	50,473	50,973	51,473	51,973	52,473	52,973	53,473	54,473
5	49,173	50,673	51,173	51,673	52,173	52,673	53,173	53,673	54,673
6	50,412	51,912	52,412	52,912	53,412	53,912	54,412	54,912	55,912
7	51,652	53,152	53,652	54,152	54,652	55,152	55,652	56,152	57,152
8	52,891	54,391	54,891	55,391	55,891	56,391	56,891	57,391	58,391
9	54,130	55,630	56,130	56,630	57,130	57,630	58,130	58,630	59,630
10	55,473	56,973	57,473	57,973	58,473	58,973	59,473	59,973	60,973
11	58,286	59,786	60,286	60,786	61,286	61,786	62,286	62,786	63,786
12	63,291	64,791	65,291	65,791	66,291	66,791	67,291	67,791	68,791
13	69,991	71,491	71,991	72,491	72,991	73,491	73,991	74,491	75,491
14	76,791	78,291	78,791	79,291	79,791	80,291	80,791	81,291	82,291

			Sa	alary Progr	ession C	ha <u>rt</u>			
2004-	2005	2005	-2006	2006-	2007	20	07-2008	2008-	2009
Years	Step	Years	Step	Years	Step	Year	s Step	Years	Step
1-3	1-3	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1
4	4	2-4	2	2	2	2	2	2	2
									-
5-6	5	5	3	3-5	3	3	3	3	3
70		6-7	4		4				4
7-8	6	6-7	4	6	4	<u>4-6</u>	4		4
9-10	7	8-9	5	7-8	5	7	5	5-7	5
5-10		0-3		<u> 7-0</u>				<u> </u>	5
11	8	10-11	6	9-10	6	8-9	6	8	6
									•
12-13	9	12	7	11-12	7	10-1	1 7	9-10	7
14	10	13-14	8	13	8	12-1	3 8	11-12	8
		<u> </u>							
15	11	15	9	14-15	9	<u>14</u>	9	13-14	9
10									10
16	12	16	10	16	10	15-10	6 10	15	10
17	12	17	11	17	11	17	11	16-17	11
17	13							10-17	11
18-19	14	18	12	18	12	18	12	18	12
10-13			12		12		1 12		14
20	15	19-20	13	19	13	19	13	19	13
21+	16	21+	14 🗕	20+	14 🗕	20+	14	20+	14

## Schedule B - Summary of Benefits

	In-Network	Organization (PPO) Out-of-Network	Point of Se In-Network	rvice (POS) Out-of-Network
Deductible (Total combined per year)		\$400 per indiv./two ded. per family		\$200 per indiv./two ded. per family
Hospital/Facility	None		None	
Professional	None		None	
Supplemental	\$300 per indiv./two ded. per family		None	
Coinsurance				
Hospital/Facility	100%	80%	100%	80%
Professional	100%	80%	100%	80%
Supplemental	80%	80%	100%	80%
		#2.000 · 1.#c000 · C		\$1,000 · 1,10 · C
Dut of pocket maximum	37/4	\$3,000 per ind./\$6000 per fam.	Norma	\$1,000 per ind./2 per fam.
Hospital/Facility	N/A		None	
Professional Supplemental	N/A N/A		None	
Maximums	IN/A		None	-
Benefit Period	Unlimited	\$1,000,000	Unlimited	Unlimited
Lifetime	Unlimited	\$1,000,000	Unlimited	Unlimited
		ILITY SERVICES		LITY SERVICES
npatient Services	In-Network	Out-of-Network	In-Network	Out-of-Network
Room & Board (semi-private room)	100%	80% after deductible	100%	80% after deductible
intensive Care & Other Hospital Services				
therapy/diagnostic services, blood				
dministration, general nursing,	100%	80% after deductible	100%	80% after deductible
perating room, etc.)				
Maternity Benefits	100%	80% after deductible	100%	80% after deductible
Atternity Benefits for dependents	100%	80% after deductible	Complications only	Complications only
Organ Transplants (Includes ABMT)	100%	80% after deductible	100%	80% after deductible
Dutpatient Services	In-Network	Out-of-Network	In-Network	Out-of-Network
Hospital Services (operating room, blood		1	1	
idministration, general nursing, therapy/	100%	200/ offer is institute	100%	800/ ofter deduction
liagnostic services, etc.)	100%	80% after deductible	100%	80% after deductible 80% after deductible
Pre-Admission Testing Medical Emergency/Accidental Injury	100%	80% after deductible r \$50 copay		\$35 copay
Jedical Emergency/Accidental Injury	100% after 100%	80% after deductible	100% after 100%	835 copay 80% after deductible
Diagnostic X-ray & Lab	100%	80% after deductible 80% after deductible	100%	80% after deductible 80% after deductible
hagnostic X-ray & Lab	100%	80% after deductible 80% after deductible	100%	80% after deductible
killed Nursing Facility	100%	80% after deductible	100%	80% after deductible
skilled isdising Facility		ng a 3 or more day prior hospital stay.	100 days per BP	60 days per benefit period
Iome Health Care	120 days per benefit period, followit 100%	80% after deductible	100%	80% after deductible
Ione Heart Care		r benefit, direct admission		benefit period
Iospice Care	100%	80% after deductible	100%	80% after deductible
		000 maximum		000 maximum
	•			
	Preferrred Provider	Organization (PPO)		rvice (POS)
	PHYSICIAN	SERVICES		SERVICES
npatient Services	In-Network	Out-of-Network	In-Network	Out-of-Network
Aedical Care (including consultations)	100%	80% after deductible	100%	80% after deductible
Surgical Services (including assistant				
urgeon and anesthesia)	100%	80% after deductible	100%	80% after deductible
Anesthesia	100%	80% after deductible	100%	80% after deductible
Anesthesia Dbstetrical Services (i.e., normal delivery,		80% after deductible	100%	80% after deductible
Anesthesia Dbstetrical Services (i.e., normal delivery, resarean section, abortion)	100%	80% after deductible 80% after deductible	100%	80% after deductible 80% after deductible
Anesthesia Dbstetrical Services (i.e., normal delivery, resarean section, abortion) Diagnostic/Therapy Services		80% after deductible	100%	80% after deductible
Anesthesia Dbstetrical Services (i.e., normal delivery, esarean section, abortion) Diagnostic/Therapy Services	100% 100%	80% after deductible 80% after deductible 80% after deductible	100% 100% 100%	80% after deductible 80% after deductible 80% after deductible
Anesthesia Distetrical Services (i.e., normal delivery, esarean section, abortion) Diagnostic/Therapy Services Dutpatient/Out-of-Hospital Services	100%	80% after deductible 80% after deductible	100%	80% after deductible 80% after deductible
Anesthesia Distetrical Services (i.e., normal delivery, esarean section, abottion) Diagnostic/Therapy Services Datpatient/Out-of-Hospital Services Diffice Visits (including related	100% 100%	80% after deductible 80% after deductible 80% after deductible	100% 100% 100%	80% after deductible 80% after deductible 80% after deductible
hnesthesia Distetrical Services (i.e., normal delivery, esarcan section, abortion) Diagnostic/Therapy Services Dutpatient/Out-of-Hospital Services Diffice Visits (including related fingnostic/therapy services) when	100% 100% In-Network	80% after deductible 80% after deductible 80% after deductible 0ut-of-Network	100% 100% 100% In-Network	80% after deductible 80% after deductible 80% after deductible 80% after deductible Out-of-Network
Inesthesia Distericial Services (i.e., normal delivery, esarean section, abortion) Jagonstef:/Therapy Services Datpatient/Out-of-Hospital Services Diffice Visits (including related liagnostic/therapy services) when nedically necessary	100% 100% In-Network 100% after \$20 copay	80% after deductible 80% after deductible 80% after deductible Out-of-Network 80% after deductible	100% 100% 100% In-Network 100% after \$5 copay	80% after deductible 80% after deductible 80% after deductible Out-of-Network 80% after deductible
nesthesia bistetrical Services (i.e., normal delivery, esarean section, abortion) jagnostic/Therapy Services <b>Jutpatient/Out-of-Hospital Services</b> <b>Diffice Visis</b> (including related iagnostic/therapy services) when edically necessary hysician Charges-Non Surgical	100% 100% In-Network 100% after \$20 copay 100% after \$20 copay	80% after deductible 80% after deductible 80% after deductible <b>Out-of-Network</b> 80% after deductible 80% after deductible	100% 100% 100% In-Network 100% after \$5 copay 100% after \$5 copay	80% after deductible 80% after deductible 80% after deductible <b>Out-of-Network</b> 80% after deductible 80% after deductible
hnesthesia Jbstetrical Services (i.e., normal delivery, esarcan section, abortion) Jiagnostic/Therapy Services Jutpatient/Out-of-Hospital Services Jffice Visits (including related liagnostic/therapy services) when nedically necessary /hysician Charges-Non Surgical econd Opinion Charges	100% 100% In-Network 100% after 520 copay 100% after 520 copay 100% after 520 copay	80% after deductible 80% after deductible 80% after deductible Out-of-Network 80% after deductible 80% after deductible 80% after deductible	100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%	80% after deductible 80% after deductible 80% after deductible 0ut-of-Network 80% after deductible 80% after deductible 80% after deductible
nesthesia Distericial Services (i.e., normal delivery, esarean section, abortion) Magnostic/Therapy Services Unptaftent/OtheraPy Services Mitee Visits (including related liagnostic/therapy services) when neclically necessary Mysician Charges-Non Surgical eccond Opinion Charges Matemity Care	100% 100% In-Network 100% after \$20 copay 100% after \$20 copay 100% after \$20 copay	80% after deductible 80% after deductible 80% after deductible 80% after deductible 80% after deductible 80% after deductible 80% after deductible	100% 100% 100% In-Network 100% after 55 copay 100% after 55 copay 100% after 55 copay 100% after 55 copay	80% after deductible 80% after deductible 80% after deductible 0ut-of-Network 80% after deductible 80% after deductible 80% after deductible 80% after deductible
nesthesia Distetrical Services (i.e., normal delivery, sarcan section, abortion) Jiagnostic/Therapy Services <b>Dutpatient/Out-of-Hospital Services</b> <b>Dutpatient/Out-of-Hospital Services</b> Mirce Visits (including related ingnostic/therapy services) when nedically necessary Myscian Charges-Non Surgical econd Opinion Charges Iaternity Care ettility Services	100% 100% In-Network 100% after 520 copay 100% after 520 copay 100% after 520 copay 100% after 520 copay	80% after deductible 80% after deductible 80% after deductible 00t-of-Network 80% after deductible 80% after deductible 80% after deductible 80% after deductible 80% after deductible	100% 100% 100% In-Network 100% after \$5 copay 100% after \$5 copay 100% after \$5 copay 100% after \$5 copay 100% after \$5 copay	80% after deductible 80% after deductible
Inesthesia Distericial Services (i.e., normal delivery, esarean section, abortion) Jiagnostic/Therapy Services <b>Difuce Visits (including related</b> liagnostic/therapy services) when needically necessary Physician Charges-Non Surgical econd Opinion Charges Iderenty Care Frillity Services	100% 100% In-Network 100% after \$20 copay 100% after \$20 copay 100% after \$20 copay 100% after \$20 copay 100% after \$20 copay	80% after deductible 80% after deductible	100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% after \$5 copay 100%	80% after deductible 80% after deductible
nesthesia bistetrical Services (i.e., normal delivery, esarean section, abortion) biagnostic/Therapy Services biagnostic/Therapy Services bifue Visits (including related iagnostic/therapy services) when acdically necessary thysician Charges-Non Surgical econd Opinion Charges laternity Care ertility Services biagnostic X-ray & Lab	100% 100% In-Network 100% after 520 copay 100% after 520 copay	80% after deductible	100% 100% 100% In-Network 100% after \$5 copay 100% after \$5 copay 100% after \$5 copay 100% after \$5 copay 100% after \$5 copay	80% after deductible 80% after deductible 80% after deductible 0ut-of-Network 80% after deductible 80% after deductible 80% after deductible 80% after deductible
nesthesia Distetrical Services (i.e., normal delivery, esarean section, abortion) Diagnostic/Thengy Services Duptalient/Out-of-Hospital Services Diffice Visits (including related diagnostic/thengy services) when nedically necessary Physican Charges-Non Surgical iccond Opinion Charges Auternity Care Ernitity Services Diagnostic X-ray & Lab Diagnostic X-ray & Lab Vell Child Care (up to age 20)	100% 100% In-Network 100% after 520 copay 100% after 520 copay 300 maximum per c	80% after deductible 80% (no deductible) 80% (no deductible)	100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% after \$5 copay 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100	80% after deductible 80% after deductible
nesthesia Distetrical Services (i.e., normal delivery, esarean section, abortion) Jagnostic/Therapy Services <b>Durpatient/Ott-of-Hospital Services</b> <b>Diffice Visis</b> (including related liagnostic/therapy services) when nedically necessary Nysician Charges-Non Surgical eccond Opinion Charges Jaternity Care Frillity Services Jiagnostic X-ray & Lab Vel Child Care (up to age 20) Thild Immunizations/Lead Testing	100% 100% 100% 100% after 520 copay 100% after 520 copay	80% after deductible           80% (no deductible)           80% (no deductible)	100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%	80% after deductible 80% (no deductible)
nesthesia bistetrical Services (i.e., normal delivery, esarean section, abortion) jagnostic/Therapy Services <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Hospital Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Hospital Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Hospital Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Hospital Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Hospital Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Hospital Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Hospital Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Hospital Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Hospital Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Services</b> <b>bittpatient/Ont-of-Ser</b>	100% 100% In-Network 100% after 520 copay 100% after 520 copay	80% after deductible 80% (no deductible) 80% (no deductible)	100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% after \$5 copay 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100	80% after deductible 80% after deductible
nesthesia bisetrical Services (i.e., normal delivery, esarean section, abortion) higmostic/Therapy Services uptraftent/Oth-of-Hospital Services of the Visits (including related iagnostic/therapy services) when aedically necessary hysician Charges-Non Surgical econd Opinion Charges laternity Care ertilly Services bigmostic X-ray & Lab Vell Child Care (up to age 20) 'hild Immunizations/Lead Testing contine Adult Physicals	100% 100% 100% 100% 100% after \$20 copay 100% 100% after \$20 copay 100% 100% after \$20 copay 100%	80% after deductible           80% (no deductible)           80% (no deductible)	100%           100%           100%           100%           In-Network           100% after 55 copay	80% after deductible 80% (no deductible)
nesthesia bisetrical Services (i.e., normal delivery, esarean section, abortion) higmostic/Therapy Services uptraftent/Oth-of-Hospital Services of the Visits (including related iagnostic/therapy services) when aedically necessary hysician Charges-Non Surgical econd Opinion Charges laternity Care ertilly Services bigmostic X-ray & Lab Vell Child Care (up to age 20) 'hild Immunizations/Lead Testing contine Adult Physicals	100% 100% 100% 100% after 520 copay 100% after 520 copay	80% after deductible           80% (no deductible)           80% (no deductible)           80% (no deductible)           80% (no deductible)	100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%	80% after deductible           No coverage           80% (no deductible)           No coverage
nesthesia bistetrical Services (i.e., normal delivery, esarean section, abortion) biagnostic/Therapy Services bitter Visits (including related iagnostic/therapy services) when acdically necessary thysician Charges-Non Surgical econd Opinion Charges datemity Care ertility Services bignostic X-ray & Lab Vell Child Care (up to age 20) bild Immunizations/Lead Testing tooatine Adult Physicals trostate Screening (NJ Mandate)	100% 100% In-Network 100% after 520 copay 100% after 520 copay	80% after deductible           80% (no deductible)           80% (no deductible)           80% (no deductible)           80% (no deductible)	100%           100%           100%           100%           In-Network           100% after S5 copay	80% after deductible           No coverage           80% (no deductible)           No coverage
Inesthesia Inesthesia Distericial Services (i.e., normal delivery, esarean section, abortion) Jiagnostic/Therapy Services Unfrice Visits (including related liagnostic/therapy services) when nedically necessary Physician Charges-Non Surgical accond Opinion Charges Idarenty Care ertiflity Services Unignostic X-ray & Lab Veil Child Care (up to age 20) Thild Immunizations/Lead Testing toutine Adult Physicals Prostate Screening (NJ Mandate)	100% 100% 100% 100% 100% after S20 copay	80% after deductible           80% (no deductible)	100%           100%           100%           100%           In-Network           100% after S5 copay	80% after deductible           80% coverage           80% after deductible           80% after deductible
Inesthesia Inesthesia Distericial Services (i.e., normal delivery, esarean section, abortion) Jiagnostic/Therapy Services Unproduct/Out-of-Hospital Services Unproduct/Out-of-Hospital Services Unproduct/Unerapy services) when needically necessary Physical Charges Nan Surgical iecond Opinion Charges Marenty Care Veil Child Care (up to age 20) Child Inmunizations/Lead Testing Counte Adult Physicals Prostate Screening (NJ Mandate) Annual Routine Ob/Gyn Exam	100% 100% In-Network 100% after 520 copay 100% after 520 copay	80% after deductible           80% (no deductible)	100%           100%           100%           100%           In-Network           100% after S5 copay	80% after deductible           80% coverage           80% after deductible           80% after deductible
Inesthesia Inesthesia Distericial Services (i.e., normal delivery, esarean section, abortion) Jiagnostic/Therapy Services Unproduct/Out-of-Hospital Services Unproduct/Out-of-Hospital Services Unproduct/Unerapy services) when needically necessary Physical Charges Nan Surgical iecond Opinion Charges Marenty Care Veil Child Care (up to age 20) Child Inmunizations/Lead Testing Counte Adult Physicals Prostate Screening (NJ Mandate) Annual Routine Ob/Gyn Exam	100% 100% 100% 100% 100% after S20 copay	80% after deductible           80% (no deductible)	100%           100%           100%           100%           In-Network           100% after S5 copay	80% after deductible
nesthesia Insettical Services (i.e., normal delivery, esarean section, abortion) Subetrical Services Unpatient/Ot-of-Hospital Services Unpatie	100% 100% 100% 100% after \$20 copay	80% after deductible           80% (no deductible)	100%           100%           100%           100%           In-Network           100% after \$5 copay	80% after deductible
nesthesia Insettiesia Distetrical Services (i.e., normal delivery, essrean section, abortion) Sugnostic/Therapy Services Natpatident/Out-of-Hospital Services Natpatident/Out-of-Hospital Services Infice Visits (including related General Control of Services) Maternity Care Fordital Services Integration Charges Auternity Care Fordity Services Integration Sector (Integration Sector (Integration) Sector (Integration) Sector (Integration) Integration (Integration) Integration Integ	100% 100% 100% 100% after \$20 copay 100%	80% after deductible           80% (no deductible)	100%           100%           100%           100% after \$5 copay	80% after deductible
Inesthesia Inesthesia Insertical Services (i.e., normal delivery, esarean section, abortion) Jiagnostic/Therapy Services Infice Visits (including related Ingnostic/therapy services) when netically necessary Physician Charges-Non Surgical econd Opinion Charges Inductive Care Infili Services Ingnostic X-ray & Lab Vell Child Care (up to age 20) Initel Annual Routine Ob/Gyn Exam Tay Services Instate Screening (NJ Mandate) Initel Services Interview	100% 100% 100% 100% after \$20 copay 100%	80% after deductible           80% (no deductible)	100%           100%           100%           100% after \$5 copay	80% after deductible
nesthesia Insettiesia Distericial Services (i.e., normal delivery, esirean section, abortion) Sugnostic/Therapy Services Dupatient/Out-of-Hospital Services Diffice Visits (including related liagnostic/therapy services) when endically necessary Physical Charges-Non Surgical econd Optinion Charges Maternity Care evility Services Diagnostic X-ray & Lab Neil Child Care (up to age 20) Child Immunizations/Lead Testing Coutine Adult Physicals Prostate Screening (NI Mandate) Annual Routine Ob/Gyn Exam Pap & Mammography Mandates ihort Term Therapies: Thysical, Speech, Streening, Nightal,	100% 100% 100% 100% after \$20 copay 100% after \$20	80% after deductible           80% (no deductible)	100%           100%           100%           100% after \$5 copay	80% after deductible
nesthesia nesthesia Nestrical Services (i.e., normal delivery, essrean section, abortion) Sugnostic/Therapy Services Nupatient/Out-of-Hospital Services Nupatient/Out-of-Hospital Services Nupatient/Out-of-Hospital Services Nupatient/Out-of-Hospital Services Nupatient/Out-of-Hospital Services Nupatient/Out-of-Hospital Services Nupscian Charges-Non Surgical coond Opinion Charges Laternity Care entity Services Nagnostic X-ray & Lab Neil Child Care (up to age 20) Thild Immunizations/Lead Testing Cootine Adult Physicals Tostate Screening (NJ Mandate) Annual Routine Ob/Gyn Exam Tap & Mammography Mandates hort Term Therapies: Thysical, Speech, Services Neary	100% 100% 100% 100% 100% after \$20 copay 100% after	80% after deductible           80% (no deductible)	100%           100%           100%           100%           100% after \$5 copay	80% after deductible
nesthesia nesshesia Nettrical Services (i.e., normal delivery, esarean section, abortion) Nettrical Services	100% 100% 100% 100% after \$20 copay 100% after \$20	80% after deductible           80% (no deductible)           80% after deductible           80% after deductible           80% after deductible           80% after deductible	100%           100%           100%           100%           100% after \$5 copay           25 visits in a 60 da           100% after \$5 copay           25 visits in a 60 da           100% after \$5 copay	80% after deductible
nesthesia nesshesia Nestrical Services (i.e., normal delivery, esarean section, abortion) Nagnostic/Therapy Services Nutpatient/Out-of-Hospital Services Iffice Visits (including related iagnostic/therapy services) when dedically necessary Physical Charges-Non Surgical econd Opinion Charges Iaternity Care ertility Services Iaternity Care Internity Ca	100%           100%           100% after 520 copay	80% after deductible           80% (no deductible)           80% after deductible	100%           100%           100%           100%           100% after S5 copay	80% after deductible
nesthesia nesthesia nesthesia bisterical Services (i.e., normal delivery, esarean section, abortion) biagnostic/Therapy Services mitignostic/Therapy Services mitignostic/therapy services) when sedically necessary bysical Charges-Non Surgical econd Opinion Charges aternity Care erritiny Services bialernity Care erriting Services bialernity Care erriting Services biald Care (up to age 20) biald Immunizations/Lead Testing outine Adult Physicals rostate Screening (NJ Mandate) annual Routine Ob/Gyn Exam ap & Mammography Mandates bort Term Therapies: bort Term Therapies: brotage Service Care biald Service Care	100% 100% 100% 100% after \$20 copay 100% after \$20	80% after deductible           80% (no deductible)           80% after deductible           80% after deductible           80% after deductible           80% after deductible	100%           100%           100%           100%           100% after \$5 copay           25 visits in a 60 da           100% after \$5 copay           25 visits in a 60 da           100% after \$5 copay	80% after deductible
nesthesia nesthesia nesthesia bisterical Services (i.e., normal delivery, esarean section, abortion) biagnostic/Therapy Services mitignostic/Therapy Services mitignostic/therapy services) when sedically necessary bysical Charges-Non Surgical econd Opinion Charges aternity Care erritiny Services bialernity Care erriting Services bialernity Care erriting Services biald Care (up to age 20) biald Immunizations/Lead Testing outine Adult Physicals rostate Screening (NJ Mandate) annual Routine Ob/Gyn Exam ap & Mammography Mandates bort Term Therapies: bort Term Therapies: brotage Service Care biald Service Care	100%           100%           100% after \$20 copay	80% after deductible           80% (no deductible)           80% after deductible	100%           100%           100%           100% after S5 copay           25 visits in a 60 da           100% after S5 copay           25 visits in a 60 da           100% after S5 copay	80% after deductible
nesthesia nesthesia nesthesia nesthesia nesthesia nestrical Services (i.e., normal delivery, sarean section, abortion) iagnostic/Therapy Services fiftee Visits (including related agnostic/therapy services) when ledically necessary hysician (Charges-Non Surgical econd Opinion Charges adentity Care econd Opinion econd Opinion econd Opinion econd econd Opinion econd	100% 100% 100% 100% after \$20 copay 100% after \$20	80% after deductible           80% (no deductible)           80% after deductible           80% (no deductible)           80% (no deductible)           80% after deductible	100%           100%           100%           100%           In-Network           100% after 55 copay           25 visits in a 60 da           100% after 55 copay           25 visits in a 60 da           100% after 55 copay           25 visits in a 60 da           100% after 55 copay           25 visits in a 60 da           100% after 55 copay           25 visits in a 60 da           100% after 55 copay           25 visits in a 60 da           100% after 55	80% after deductible
nesthesia nesthesia nesthesia nesthesia nesthesia nestrical Services (i.e., normal delivery, sarean section, abortion) iagnostic/Therapy Services fiftee Visits (including related agnostic/therapy services) when ledically necessary hysician (Charges-Non Surgical econd Opinion Charges adentity Care econd Opinion econd Opinion econd Opinion econd econd Opinion econd	100%           100%           100% after 520 copay	80% after deductible	100%           100%           100%           100% after \$5 copay           25 visits in a 60 da           100% after \$5 copay           50 every 2 years           \$00 after \$5 copay           \$00 a	80% after deductible
nesthesia nesthesia bisterical Services (i.e., normal delivery, sarean section, abortion) iagnostic Therapy Services ffice Visits (including related agnostic/therapy services) when dedically necessary bysician Charges-Non Surgical econd Opinion Charges laternity Care ertifly Services agnostic X-ray & Lab deli Child Care (up to age 20) bild Immunizations/Lead Testing outine Adult Physicals rostate Screening (NJ Mandate) nnual Routine Ob/Gyn Exam ap & Manmography Mandates hord Term Therapies: hysical, Speech, coupational, Respiratory/Inhalation herapy histor.Exam ision - Hardware	100%           100%           100% after 520 copay           00% after 520 c	80% after deductible           80% (no deductible)           80% after deductible           Not Covered           Not Covered           Not Covered           Not of NetWork	100%           100%           100%           100%           100% after S5 copay           25 visits in a 60 da           100% after S5 copay           25 visits in a 60 da           100% after S5 copay           25 visits in a 60 da           100% after S5 copay           25 visits in a 60 da           100% after S5 copay           250 every 2 years           Point of Se           SUPPLENENT           In-Network	80% after deductible 80% after deductible 90% after
nesthesia nesthesia bisterical Services (i.e., normal delivery, sarean section, abortion) iagnostic Therapy Services ffice Visits (including related agnostic/therapy services) when dedically necessary bysician Charges-Non Surgical econd Opinion Charges laternity Care ertifly Services agnostic X-ray & Lab deli Child Care (up to age 20) bild Immunizations/Lead Testing outine Adult Physicals rostate Screening (NJ Mandate) nnual Routine Ob/Gyn Exam ap & Manmography Mandates hord Term Therapies: hysical, Speech, coupational, Respiratory/Inhalation herapy histor.Exam ision - Hardware	100%           100%           100% after 520 copay	80% after deductible	100%           100%           100%           100% after \$5 copay           25 visits in a 60 da           100% after \$5 copay           50 every 2 years           \$00 after \$5 copay           \$00 a	80% after deductible
nesthesia nesshesia Nestrical Services (i.e., normal delivery, esarean section, abortion) Nagnostic/Therapy Services Therapy	100%           100%           100%           100% after 520 copay           00% after 520 copay <td>80% after deductible           80% (no deductible)           80% after deductible           80% after deductible     <td>100%           100%           100%           100% after \$5 copay           25 visits in a 60 da           100% after \$5 copay           50 every 2 years           Point of \$6           SUPPLEMENT           100%</td><td>80% after deductible           80% after deductible</td></td>	80% after deductible           80% (no deductible)           80% after deductible           80% after deductible <td>100%           100%           100%           100% after \$5 copay           25 visits in a 60 da           100% after \$5 copay           50 every 2 years           Point of \$6           SUPPLEMENT           100%</td> <td>80% after deductible           80% after deductible</td>	100%           100%           100%           100% after \$5 copay           25 visits in a 60 da           100% after \$5 copay           50 every 2 years           Point of \$6           SUPPLEMENT           100%	80% after deductible
nesthesia nesshesia Nestrical Services (i.e., normal delivery, esarean section, abortion) Nagnostic/Therapy Services Therapy	100%           100%           100% after 520 copay           00% after 520 c	80% after deductible           80% (no deductible)           80% after deductible           80% (no deductible)           80% after deductible           Not Covered           Not Covered           Not Covered           Not of NetWork	100%           100%           100%           100%           100% after S5 copay           25 visits in a 60 da           100% after S5 copay           25 visits in a 60 da           100% after S5 copay           25 visits in a 60 da           100% after S5 copay           25 visits in a 60 da           100% after S5 copay           250 every 2 years           Point of Se           SUPPLENENT           In-Network	80% after deductible 80% after deductible
hnesthesia hnesthesia bhettrical Services (i.e., normal delivery, esarean section, abortion) Jolagnostic/Therapy Services Unproduct/Out-of-Hospital Services ffice Visits (including related liagnostic/therapy services) when nedically necessary Physical Charges Marmiy Care etrility Services liagnostic Aray & Lab Mend Christ (up to age 20) Child Care (up to age 20) Child Immunizations/Lead Testing Routine Adult Physicals Prostate Screening (NJ Mandate) Annual Routine Ob/Gyn Exam Pap & Mammography Mandates Hory Term Therapies: Physical, Respiratory/Inhalation herapy Ision - Hardware	100%           100%           100% after 520 copay           100%           100% after 520 copay           100% after 520 copay	80% after deductible           80% (no deductible)           80% after deductible           80% after deductible <td>100%           100%           100%           100% after \$5 copay           25 visits in a 60 da           100% after \$5 copay           50 every 2 years           Point of \$6           SUPPLEMENT           100%</td> <td>80% after deductible           80% after deductible</td>	100%           100%           100%           100% after \$5 copay           25 visits in a 60 da           100% after \$5 copay           50 every 2 years           Point of \$6           SUPPLEMENT           100%	80% after deductible
nesthesia nesshesia Nestrical Services (i.e., normal delivery, esarean section, abortion) Nagnostic/Therapy Services Therapy	100%           100%           100% after 520 copay           60 visits for each ther           100% after 520 copay           60 visits for each ther           100% after 520 copay           60 visits for each ther           100% after 520 copay           60 visits for each ther           100% after 520 copay           60 visits for each ther           100% after 520 copay           60 visits for each ther           100% after 520 copay           60 visits for each ther	80% after deductible           80% (no deductible)           80% after deductible           80% after deductible <td>100%           100%           100%           100% after \$5 copay           25 visits in a 60 da           100% after \$5 copay           50 every 2 years           Point of \$6           SUPPLEMENT           100%</td> <td>80% after deductible           80% after deductible</td>	100%           100%           100%           100% after \$5 copay           25 visits in a 60 da           100% after \$5 copay           50 every 2 years           Point of \$6           SUPPLEMENT           100%	80% after deductible
nesthesia nesshesia Nestrical Services (i.e., normal delivery, esarean section, abortion) Nagnostic/Therapy Services Therapy	100%           100%           100% after 520 copay           100%           100% after 520 copay           100% after 520 copay	80% after deductible           80% (no deductible)           80% after deductible           80% after deductible <td>100%           100%           100%           100% after \$5 copay           25 visits in a 60 da           100% after \$5 copay           50 every 2 years           Point of \$6           SUPPLEMENT           100%</td> <td>80% after deductible           80% after deductible</td>	100%           100%           100%           100% after \$5 copay           25 visits in a 60 da           100% after \$5 copay           50 every 2 years           Point of \$6           SUPPLEMENT           100%	80% after deductible
nesthesia nesshesia Nestrical Services (i.e., normal delivery, esarean section, abortion) Nagnostic/Therapy Services Therapy	100%           100%           100% after 520 copay           60 visits for each ther           100% after 520 copay           60 visits for each ther           100% after 520 copay           60 visits for each ther           100% after 520 copay           60 visits for each ther           100% after 520 copay           60 visits for each ther           100% after 520 copay           60 visits for each ther           100% after 520 copay           60 visits for each ther	80% after deductible           80% (no deductible)           80% after deductible           80% after deductible <td>100%           100%           100%           100% after \$5 copay           25 visits in a 60 da           100% after \$5 copay           50 every 2 years           Point of \$6           SUPPLEMENT           100%</td> <td>80% after deductible           80% after deductible</td>	100%           100%           100%           100% after \$5 copay           25 visits in a 60 da           100% after \$5 copay           50 every 2 years           Point of \$6           SUPPLEMENT           100%	80% after deductible
nesthesia nesthesia nesthesia bisterical Services (i.e., normal delivery, esarean section, abortion) higgnostic/Therapy Services ffice Visits (including related agnostic/therapy services) when dedically necessary hysician (Charges-Non Surgical cond Option Charges laternity Care cond Option Charges laternity Care laterni	100% 100% 100% 100% 100% after \$20 copay 100% after	80% after deductible           80% (no deductible)           80% after deductible           80% after deductible <td>100%           100%           100%           100% after \$5 copay           25 visits in a 60 di           100% after \$5 copay           \$00% after \$5 copay           20% after \$5 copay           50 every 2 years           Point of \$6           30 visits per benefit period</td> <td>80% after deductible           80% after deductible</td>	100%           100%           100%           100% after \$5 copay           25 visits in a 60 di           100% after \$5 copay           \$00% after \$5 copay           20% after \$5 copay           50 every 2 years           Point of \$6           30 visits per benefit period	80% after deductible
Inesthesia	100%           100% after 520 copay           100%           100%           100% after 520 copay           100%           100%           100%           100%           100%           100%           100%           100%           100%	80% after deductible 80% (no deductible) 80% after deductible 80% after deductible	100%         100%         100%         100% after S5 copay         25 visits in a 60 da         100% after S5 copay         25 visits in a 60 da         100% after S5 copay         25 visits in a 60 da         100% after S5 copay         25 visits in a 60 da         100% after S5 copay         25 visits in a 60 da         100% after S5 copay         250 every 2 years         Point of Se         30 visits per benefit period         100%	80% after deductible
Anesthesia Dbstetrical Services (i.e., normal delivery, resarean section, abortion)	100%           100% after 520 copay           100%           100%           100% after 520 copay           100%           100%           100%           100%           100%           100%           100%           100%           100%	80% after deductible 80% (no deductible) 80% after deductible 80% after deductible	100%         100%         100%         100% after S5 copay         25 visits in a 60 da         100% after S5 copay         25 visits in a 60 da         100% after S5 copay         25 visits in a 60 da         100% after S5 copay         25 visits in a 60 da         100% after S5 copay         25 visits in a 60 da         100% after S5 copay         250 every 2 years         Point of Se         30 visits per benefit period         100%	80% after deductible           90% after deductible           \$50 every 2 years           rvice (POS)           Out-of-Network           80% after deductible           No benefit
nesthesia nesshesia Nettrical Services (i.e., normal delivery, esarean section, abortion) Nagnostic/Therapy Services Iffice Visits (including related iagnostic/therapy services) when sedically necessary Mysician Charges-Non Surgical cond Opinion Charges Anternity Care eritlity Services Nagnostic X-ray & Lab Negnostic X-ray & Lab Negnostic X-ray & Lab Negnostic X-ray & Lab Nell Child Care (up to age 20) Nild Immunizations/Lead Testing toutine Adult Physicals rostate Screening (NJ Mandate) Annual Routine Ob/Gyn Exam Tap & Mammography Mandates Nort Term Therapies: Nort Term Therapies: Nort Term Therapies: Nort Gare 'rision-Exam Tision - Hardware unbulance ground and air trivate Duty Nursing Durable Medical Equipment	100%           100% after 520 copay           100%           100%           100%           100%           100%           100%           100% <t< td=""><td>80% after deductible 80% (no deductible) 80% after deductible 80% after deductible</td><td>100%           100%           100%           100% after \$5 copay           25 visits in a 60 da           100% after \$5 copay           \$50 every 2 years           Point of \$5           SUPPLEMENT           100%           100%           100%           100%           100%           100%</td><td>80% after deductible           80% after deductible           \$0% after deductible</td></t<>	80% after deductible 80% (no deductible) 80% after deductible	100%           100%           100%           100% after \$5 copay           25 visits in a 60 da           100% after \$5 copay           \$50 every 2 years           Point of \$5           SUPPLEMENT           100%           100%           100%           100%           100%           100%	80% after deductible           \$0% after deductible

	MENTAL HEALTH/S	UBSTANCE ABUSE *	MENTAL HEALTH/SUBSTANCE ABUSE *		
	In-Network	Out-of-Network	In-Network	Out-of-Network	
Inpatient Services	100%	80% after deductible	100%	80% after deductible	
	45 days per benefit period		45 days per benefit period		
Outpatient Services	50% up to 48 visits per BP in eligible expenses, subject to deductible	50% up to 48 visits per BP in eligible expenses, subject to deductible	100% after \$5 copay 50 days per benefit period 150 days per lifetime	80% after deductible 20 days per benefit period 60 days per lifetime	

	ELIGI	BILITY	ELIGIBILITY		
	In-Network	Out-of-Network	In-Network	Out-of-Network	
Children covered to end of calendar year					
in which they turn age:	23	23	23	23	

# SCHEDULE C CO-CURRICULAR GUIDES

# High School

Activity	2005-2006	2006-2007	2007-2008	<u>2008-2009</u>
Senior Class Advisor	\$2,702	\$2,783	\$2,866	\$2,952
Junior Class Advisor	2,408	2,480	2,555	2,631
Sophomore Class Advisor	2,047	2,108	2,171	2,236
Freshman Class Advisor	2,047	2,108	2,171	2,236
Marching Band Director	7,480	7,704	7,935	8,173
Assistant Marching Band Director	3,106	3,200	3,296	3,395
Marching Band Drill Instructor	3,157	3,252	3,349	3,450
Outdoor Marching Band Front Coordinator	2,574	2,651	2,731	2,813
Outdoor Marching Band Choreographer	1,573	1,620	1,669	1,719
Outdoor Marching Band Percussion Instructor	2,574	2,651	2,731	2,813
Outdoor Marching Band Instructor - 2 Positions	1,573	1,620	1,669	1,719
Summer Marching Band Camp Director	1,801	1,856	1,911	1,969
Assistant Summer Marching Band Camp Director	1,258	1,295	1,334	1,374
Indoor Assistant Marching Band Director	3,092	3,185	3,280	3,379
Indoor Color Guard Choreographer	1,573	1,620	1,669	1,719
Orchestra Director	2,508	2,583	2,661	2,741
Tri-M Advisor	734	756	779	802
Choir Director	2,676	2,756	2,839	2,924
Musical Director	3,783	3,897	4,014	4,134
Assistant Musical Director	734	756	779	802
Musical Choreographer	734	756	779	802
Drama Director	3,783	3,897	4,014	4,134
Assistant Drama Director	734	756	779	802
Stage Crew Advisor	3,783	3,897	4,014	4,134
Assistant Stage Crew Advisor	734	756	779	802
Scenery Design Club Advisor	1,873	1,929	1,987	2,046
Newspaper Advisor	2,199	2,265	2,333	2,403
Yearbook Advisor	4,863	5,009	5,159	5,314
Student Council Advisor	2,827	2,912	3,000	3,090
Department Chair	\$2810+75	\$2894+75	\$2981+75	\$3070+75
R.E.B.E.L. Advisor	1,000	1,000	1,000	1,000
Renaissance Advisor	820	844	870	896
Academic Banquet Advisor	734	756	779	802
Academic Breakfast/Student of the Month Advisor	734	756	779	802
African American Cultural Club Advisor	734	756	779	802
Asian Club Advisor	734	756	779	802
Business Club Advisor	734	756	779	802
Chess Club Advisor	734	756	779	802
Computer Club Advisor	734	756	779	802
Engineering Academy Advisor	734	756	779	802
Film Club Advisor	734	756	779	802

High School (Continued)	2005-2006	2006-2007	2007-2008	<u>2008-2009</u>
Foreign Language Club Advisor	734	756	779	802
Forensic Club Advisor	734	756	779	802
Future Teachers of America Advisor	734	756	779	802
Guitar Club Advisor	734	756	779	802
Health Careers Club Advisor	734	756	779	802
Interact Club Advisor	734	756	779	802
Irish Culture Club Advisor	734	756	779	802
Italian-American Club Advisor	734	756	779	802
Journalism / Photography Club Advisor	734	756	779	802
National Honor Society Advisor	734	756	779	802
Peer Mediation Advisor	734	756	779	802
Poetry Club Advisor	734	756	779	802
S.A.D.D. Club Advisor	734	756	779	802
S.A.L.S.A. Advisor	734	756	779	802
S.A.V.E. Advisor	734	756	779	802
Science Club Advisor	734	756	779	802
Selah Multicultural Gospel Choir Advisor	734	756	779	802
Steppers Club Advisor	734	756	779	802
Technology Student Association Advisor	734	756	779	802
Variety Show Coordinator	734	756	779	802
Varsity Club Advisor	734	756	779	802
Weight Training (3 sessions)	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
The following stipends are based on 10% of annual salary:				
JROTC Summer Leadership #1	7,275	7,495	7,715	7,979
JROTC Summer Leadership #2	7,275	7,495	7,715	7,979
School to Work Coordinator	4,338	4,591	4,881	5,165

# **Elementary Schools and Middle School**

Elementary Schools	<u>2005-2006</u>	2006-2007	<u>2007-2008</u>	<u>2008-2009</u>
Parent Volunteer Coordinator	\$734	\$756	\$779	\$802
Safety Patrol Advisor	734	756	779	802
Student Council Advisor	734	756	779	802
Yearbook Advisor	734	756	779	802
Art Club Advisor	235	242	249	257
Character Education Advisor	235	242	249	257
P.E. Club Advisor	235	242	249	257
S.A.V.E. Advisor	235	242	249	257
Middle School	2005-2006	2006-2007	2007-2008	<u>2008-2009</u>
Band Director – 5 & 6	\$2,385	\$2,457	\$2,531	\$2,607
Band Director – 7 & 8	2,385	2,457	2,531	2,607
Chorus Director – 5 & 6	2,385	2,457	2,531	2,607
Chorus Director – 7 & 8	2,385	2,457	2,531	2,607
Orchestra	2,385	2,457	2,531	2,607
Yearbook Advisor	2,385	2,457	2,531	2,607
Newspaper Advisor	2,001	2,061	2,123	2,187
Student Council Advisor	2,001	2,061	2,123	2,187
Cheerleading	1,781	1,834	1,889	1,946
Play Director	1,639	1,688	1,739	1,791
Football	1,183	1,218	1,255	1,293
Basketball-Fall-Boys	1,183	1,218	1,255	1,293
Basketball-Fall-Girls	1,183	1,218	1,255	1,293
Basketball-Spring-Boys	1,183	1,218	1,255	1,293
Basketball-Spring-Girls	1,183	1,218	1,255	1,293
Softball	1,183	1,218	1,255	1,293
Track & Field	1,183	1,218	1,255	1,293
Cross Country	1,183	1,218	1,255	1,293
Soccer	1,183	1,218	1,255	1,293
Stage Crew Supervisor	1,183	1,218	1,255	1,293
Renaissance Club Advisor – 5 & 6	820	845	870	896
Renaissance Club Advisor – 7 & 8	820	845	870	896
Art Club Advisor	734	756	779	802
Computer Club Advisor	734	756	779	802
Junior National Honor Society Advisor	734	756	779	802
Parent Volunteer Coordinator	734	756	779	802
Builder's Club Advisor	629	647	666	686
Math Counts Advisor	629	647	666	686
Multicultural Club Advisor	629	647	666	686
Orchestra/Select Ensemble	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Weight Training	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A

# **District**

# **Hourly Compensation/Teachers**

	<u>Activity</u>	<u>2005-2006</u>	2006-2007	2007-2008	<u>2008-2009</u>
5:3.6	Prep Period	\$29	\$30	\$31	\$33
8:4	Home Instruction, Saturday Suspension, 3-7 Suspension, After-School Detention, Summer Completion, PAC Committee/ S.T.A.R., Site Council/Consortium, IR&T/IR&S	32	32	32	33
10.2	Curriculum	32	32	32	33

# **Event Compensation/Teachers**

	Activity	2005-2006	2006-2007	2007-2008	2008-2009
8:6	Chaperone	\$69	\$69	\$69	\$69
8:7	Night Performance-Elementary	82	82	82	82

Distric	<u>et – W</u>	ide /	Activi	ties

Activity	<u>2005-2006</u>	2006-2007	<u>2007-2008</u>	<u>2008-2009</u>
PDD Grant Reporter	734	\$756	\$779	\$802
PDD Site Coordinators (6)	734 x 6	756 x 6	779 x 6	802 x 6
Public Relations (6)	734 x 6	756 x 6	779 x 6	802 x 6
Web Site Manager/High School	1,762	1,815	1,869	1,925
Web Site Manager/Middle School	1,234	1,271	1,309	1,348
Web Site Managers/Elementary Schools (4)	893 x 4	920 x 4	948 x 4	976 x 4
Video Specialist	734	756	779	802
Visual & Performing Arts Coord.	3,024	3,115	3,208	3,304
Asst. Visual & Performing Arts Coord.	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A

# SCHEDULE D ATHLETIC GUIDES

# High School

		mgn benou	Step	Ono	
<u>Group</u>		2005-2006	<u>2006-2007</u>	<u>2007-2008</u>	<u>2008-2009</u>
I	Head Coach	\$7,479	\$7,703	\$7,934	\$8,173
I	Assistant Coach	5,517	5,683	5,853	6,029
II	Head Coach	6,228	6,415	6,607	6,806
II	Assistant Coach	4,599	4,737	4,879	5,025
III	Head Coach	4,851	4,997	5,146	5,301
III	Assistant Coach	3,580	3,687	3,798	3,912
IV	Head Coach	4,220	4,347	4,477	4,611
IV	Assistant Coach	3,114	3,207	3,304	3,403

			Step '	Гwo	
<u>Group</u>		<u>2005-2006</u>	2006-2007	<u>2007-2008</u>	<u>2008-2009</u>
Ι	Head Coach	\$7,936	\$8,174	\$8,419	\$8,672
Ι	Assistant Coach	5,976	6,155	6,340	6,530
II	Head Coach	6,611	6,809	7,013	7,224
II	Assistant Coach	4,979	5,128	5,282	5,441
III	Head Coach	5,147	5,301	5,460	5,624
III	Assistant Coach	3,875	3,991	4,111	4,234
IV	Head Coach	4,477	4,612	4,750	4,893
IV	Assistant Coach	3,369	3,470	3,574	3,682

		Step Three				
<u>Group</u>		2005-2006	2006-2007	<u>2007-2008</u>	<u>2008-2009</u>	
Ι	Head Coach	\$8,396	\$8,647	\$8,907	\$9,174	
II	Head Coach	6,991	7,200	7,416	7,639	
III	Head Coach	5,439	5,603	5,771	5,944	
IV	Head Coach	4,735	4,877	5,023	5,174	

Group I	Football
Group II	Basketball, Wrestling
Group III	Soccer, Baseball, Hockey, Softball, Track, Tennis, Swimming, Volleyball, Golf
Group IV	Cross Country, Cheerleading, Indoor Track

# **Middle School**

	2005-2006	2006-2007	<u>2007-2008</u>	<u>2008-2009</u>
Interscholastic Basketball				
Head Coach	\$3,197	\$3,293	\$3,392	\$3,494
Assistant Coach	1,132	1,166	1,201	1,237
Interscholastic Wrestling				
Head Coach	3,197	3,293	3,392	3,494
Assistant Coach	1,132	1,166	1,201	1,237
Interscholastic Field Hockey				
Head Coach	3,197	3,293	3,392	3,494
Assistant Coach	1,132	1,166	1,201	1,237
Interscholastic Softball				
Head Coach	3,197	3,293	3,392	3,494
Assistant Coach	1,132	1,166	1,201	1,237

#### Index

Academic Freedom 5:2.1; 10:1 Assignment for Next Academic Year 5:3.2 Attendance Register 5:4

Board Meetings, public information 4:6.1-2 Building Use 4:1.3 Bulletin Boards 4:1.1

Calendar 5:5.1; 5:3.12 Chaperoned Events 8:6-7 Child Rearing Leave 7:5 Clothing, personal property 6:1.4; 6:1.7 Conformity to Law 5:1.3; 13:1; 13:3; 14; 16 Compensation 5:3.6; 5:3.9-11; 13:2 Credit Union 12:1 Criticism, teacher or methods 5:8.9-10 Curriculum 4:6.3; 8:2-3; 10

Death in the Family 7:2 Disability Plan, voluntary 4:3.2 Discipline, teachers 5:1.1-2; 5:8.6-7; 5:8.9-10; 6:2.5-6 Dues Deductions 4:3.1 Duties 5:3.4

Early Dismissal 5:3.12 Emergency School Closing 5:7 Equipment Use 4:1.4 Evaluations 5:8 Evening Meetings 5:9.2

Faculty Meetings 5:9.1 Family Medical Leave Act 7:10

Grievances 3; 9:2; 9:5

Home Instruction 8:1; 8:4

In Service 4:6.3; 5:5.3 Interruptions 5:6 Involuntary Assignments 5:3.1

Job Postings 8:1-3; 9:3; 9:3.1; 9:4; 9:6 Jury Duty 7:7 Just Cause 5:8.6-7; 5:8.9-10

Leaves, unpaid 7:8 Lunch 5:3.3

Mailboxes 4:1.2 Medical Benefits 11:5; 11:7; Schedule B POS, PPO 11:1 Dental 11:3 Prescription 11:2 Meetings 4:5; 4:6.4; 5:9; 5:13; 6:2.5-6 Military Leave 7:9 Monies Collected 5:12 No Reprisal Clause 5:1.4; 18 Nondiscrimination 2 Non-tenured Teachers 5:1.2-4

Observations 5:8.1-5 Officer's Rights 4:2.1-4; 4:4; 4:6.4 Open House 5:9.2

Parent Conferences 5:9.2 Past Practices 4:6.5; 15:2 Pay Dates 12:3 Perfect Attendance 7:1.5 Personal Days 7:3 Personnel File 5:8.3; 5:8.6-8; 5:8.10 Preparation Periods, academic, departmentalized 5:3.5; 5:3.8 Preparation Time 5:3.7 Prescribed Methodology 5:2.3 Professional Days 7:4 Pupil Grades 5:11

Recognition I Released Time for Officers 4:2 Representation Fee for Nonmembers 4:3.3 Restrooms 6:1.3 Retirement 11:5-7

Sabbatical Leave 7:6 Salary Increase, Lane Change 12:2 Saturday Suspension 8:1; 8:4 School Day 5:14 School Year 5:5.2 Sick Leave 7:1; 11:6 Sixth Class, departmentalized 5:3.8 Solicitation 5:13 Substitute Lesson Plans 5:5.5 Summer School 8:1.2; 8:4-5

Teachers' Lounge 6:1.1-2 Teaching Materials 6:2.1-4; 13:2 Textbook Selection 5:2.2 Transfers 9:3; 9:5 Involuntary 9:2 Requested 9:1 Traveling Teachers 5:10 Tuition/Workshop Reimbursement 11:4

Union Meeting Following Faculty Meeting 4:5 Unsafe Conditions 6:1.5-6

Workshops 8:2-3; 10:2; 11:4

## MONROE TOWNSHIP EDUCATION ASSOCIATION 206 Hoffman Avenue Williamstown, N.J. 08094 856-740-6800

<u>Negotiations Team</u> Ann Marchesani, Chairperson Lou Fiore, Co-Chairperson David Geyer Patrick Hansbury Monica Perella Paul VanHouten

# MONROE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION 75 E. Academy Street Williamstown, N.J. 08094 856-629-6400

Board of Education Jerry Moore, President Robert Graham, Vice President Michael Brandimarto Paul Craig Matthew Duffy Valerie Mercurio Allison J. Münch Josephine Staffieri Donna VanHouten

<u>Negotiations Team</u> Matthew Duffy, Chairperson Valerie Mercurio Jerry Moore Vincent Tarantino